
Brooklyn Board of Education
Meeting Agenda

Virtual & in the BMS Auditorium

February 23, 2022
7:00PM

Please click the link HERE to join the webinar:

Webinar ID: 850 0078 7463   Passcode: 483824
Or One tap mobile :

US: +13017158592,,85000787463#  or +13126266799,,85000787463#
Or Telephone:   Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location):

US: +1 301 715 8592  or +1 312 626 6799  or +1 646 558 8656  or +1 253 215 8782  or +1 346 248 7799
International numbers available: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kb4MUG04HX

Mission: The Brooklyn Schools will foster a drive for learning within each student to reach his/her greatest potential. To
achieve this mission, the school will continually improve its educational programs and services to meet this community's
expectations for a quality education for all.
To support public participation the documents will be posted on the  Town of Brooklyn Website as well as the  Brooklyn
Public Schools Website.  You are encouraged to send questions or comments to  buell@brooklynschools.org prior to the
meeting.

1. Attendance, Establishment of a Quorum, Call to Order

2. Public Comment

3. Approval of Minutes
a. January 26, 2022

4. Correspondence and Communication
a. Killingly Agriculture Education Program by Sydney Rosen
b. Killingly Agriculture Education Program - Appointment of Tiffany Rosen
c. Thank you - Danielson Lions Club
d. Retirement - Cynthia McCallum
e. Retirement -Lori-Ann Gibb
f. Letter from Representative Patrick Boyd

5. Administrative Reports
a. Brooklyn Enrollment
b. FY22 Financial Reports
c. January Data Dashboard
d. Brooklyn’s Best

6. Board of Education Committee Reports

7. Board Representatives to other Committees

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85000787463?pwd=Vm5MRno0dDBIcnU2ZDVyd0RBbE5ZUT09
https://www.brooklynct.org/
http://www.brooklynschools.org/
http://www.brooklynschools.org/
mailto:buell@brooklynschools.org


8. Old Business
a. Discussion regarding masks
b. Board Policies - 2nd Reading

i. 6172.1:  Gifted and Talented Students Program

9. New Business
a. COVID Updates

10. Public Comment

11. Adjournment

BOE February 23,, 2022 Agenda - Page 2



The Board of Education
Town of Brooklyn
119 Gorman Road

Brooklyn, CT 06234

Mae Lyons, Board Chair Melissa Perkins-Banas, Vice-Chair
Justin Phaiah, Secretary Kayla Burgess
Isaias Sostre

Mission: The Brooklyn Schools will foster a drive for learning within each student to reach his/her
greatest potential. To achieve this mission, the school will continually improve its educational programs

and services to meet this community's expectations for a quality education for all.

The Brooklyn Board of Education held their monthly meeting in the Brooklyn Middle School
Auditorium and virtually on January 26, 2022 via Zoom. In attendance were Mrs. Lyons, Mrs.
Perkins-Banas, Mr. Phaiah, Mrs. Burgess. Mr. Sostre was absent. Mrs. Buell, Superintendent,
was also present.

Due to the COVID-19 Pandemic, the Brooklyn Board of Education will conduct a virtual meeting in
accordance with Governor Lamont’s Executive Order 7B.

To support public participation the documents will be posted on the  
Town of Brooklyn Website as well as the  Brooklyn Public

Schools Website.
You are encouraged to send questions or comments to  buell@brooklynschools.org prior to the meeting.

1. Attendance, Establishment of a Quorum, Call to Order

Mrs. Lyons read the following Executive Order:
This is a reminder to members of the Board of Education and the Public:
Under Governor Lamont’s Executive Order 13A, the Commissioner of Public Health
created a list of venues where masks are required. It states, “All people, vaccinated or
unvaccinated, need to wear a mask when they are inside a school building or childcare
facility.”

Mrs. Lyons started with roll call: Kayle Burgess, Justin Phaiah, Melissa Perkins-Banas,
and herself were present.

Quorum established. Mrs. Lyons called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m.

2. Public Comment

Mrs. Buell read the following email she received from Eric Anderson:

Dear Brooklyn Board of Ed and Superintendent Buell,

mailto:buell@brooklynschools.org


I am writing to you today as a concerned 16 year resident of Brooklyn with 4
children in the school system, my oldest graduating from WA this spring. I love this
community.  I served on the BOE just a few years ago. And I’ve volunteered mostly in
coaching and youth activities in all my years here. Professionally, I have worked in
indoor air quality for the past 20 years and that has provided me a level of training and
expertise in this space.

Today, I would like to encourage your approval to remove the mask mandates in
our schools at your first opportunity.  I understand that the mask mandate may be lifted
by the governor by mid-February and I would like to see our schools be one of the first to
lift or modify our masking rules. Because the “internet” has no shortage of opinions
around covid19, masks, transmission, quarantining etc, including the health effects
covid19 illnesses actually has on our youth, I’ve attached a supportive plan and toolkit
prepared by pediatric physicians and specialists that I believe may be helpful.

However, nearly 2 years in on this pandemic, we have learned that many types of
masks used in schools are not an effective measure to reduce the spread of covid19. So, I
ask you to please consider the following:

● The United Kingdom and Australia (among others) have conducted efficacy
studies and the results show there is little to no difference in schools that enforce
mask mandates and those that do not.
https://fee.org/articles/bbc-uk-government-s-own-study-on-school-mask-mandates
-failed-to-show-conclusive-results/

● The CDC cites only 1 known study about cloth vs medical mask efficacy, and it
finds them ineffective against the spread of known viruses.
https://bmjopen.bmj.com/content/5/4/e006577

● Additionally, the CDC contradicts itself on the very nature of cloth masks vs
“medical” masks stating cloth masks are inferior and “rates of infection are
higher among those in cloth masks than in the medical masks and control
groups.” https://wwwnc.cdc.gov/eid/article/26/10/20-0948_articleMask wearing
has become “political”, but even traditionally left leaning network experts agree
that cloth masks and masks other than n95 provide little to no protection; “Cloth
masks are little more than facial decorations” – CNN Medical analyst Lynsay
Marr

● The World Health Organization does not recommend masking for children under
age 5, and conditional masking for ages 6-11 based on community criteria. They
also warn not to wear mask while playing sports or physical activities.
https://www.who.int/news-room/questions-and-answers/item/q-a-children-and-ma
sks-related-to-covid-19

● A covid19 virus is 0.1-0.3 microns in size. The average mold spore is 1-3 microns;
10x bigger. For years, OSHA has required workers who work in mold
contaminated spaces to wear at least an n95 respirator or better to work in said
environment. A virus at 1/10 the size is more transmissible.

My goal was to provide some base information that masking is not an adequate
measure to protect our students or staff. That many masks provide a false sense of
security.  You may also consider all the other contributing factors as to why eliminating
masks in schools is the best step for our community.  So, please consider lifting the

https://fee.org/articles/bbc-uk-government-s-own-study-on-school-mask-mandates-failed-to-show-conclusive-results/
https://fee.org/articles/bbc-uk-government-s-own-study-on-school-mask-mandates-failed-to-show-conclusive-results/
https://bmjopen.bmj.com/content/5/4/e006577
https://wwwnc.cdc.gov/eid/article/26/10/20-0948_article
https://www.who.int/news-room/questions-and-answers/item/q-a-children-and-masks-related-to-covid-19
https://www.who.int/news-room/questions-and-answers/item/q-a-children-and-masks-related-to-covid-19


mandate on masking children in schools and encourage hand washing, staying home
when sick, and home testing.

Thank you
Eric Anderson

The supportive plan and toolkit is attached at the end of the minutes.

3. Approval of Minutes

a. December 15, 2021 BOE Regular Meeting Minutes
Motion to approve the Regular Meeting Minutes for December 15, 2022.
(Perkins-Banas/Phaiah)
No Discussion
Vote Count: 4, 0
Unanimous vote to approve

Mrs. Lyons would like to request that Agenda 9a be moved up to 3b for the Math
Pilot Presentation.

Dr. Perkins-Banas made a motion to move agenda 9a up to 3b for the Math Pilot
Presentation.
(Perkins-Banas/Burgess)
No Discussion
Vote Count: 4, 0
Unanimous vote to approve

b. Math Pilot Presentation by BMS

Mrs. Tamsin stated that she wanted to provide an update on the middle schools
plan to pilot math programs this year and hopes to adopt a new math program for
next year. She provided information on the three math programs they are
interested in and mentioned at the last meeting, January 12, 2022. The math
committee has been meeting and discussing the criteria they will be using as they
pilot the programs and looking at materials as they arrive.

Illustrative Mathematics (K-8) (Non-Profit)
Pros:

● Compatible with Assistments
● Rich mathematical Tasks
● Curriculum is available online
● PD offered/CREC Support
● Assessments: Check for readiness, mid, and end
● Compatible with Open Up Resources
● Three Certified Partners: Kendall Hunt (online curriculum printed into

book), Learnzillion (black and white printed book and digital platform).
McGraw Hill (Color printed book and intervention resources - Aleks)



● K-12 Curriculum (L=5. 6-8)
● Lessons designed for 45 minutes grades 6-8 and 60 minutes K-5

Cons:
● No built in interventions
● Manipulatives purchased separately

CPM (6-8)
Pros:

● Homework: skills review built in
● CPM: Collaborative Problem based Mastery over time
● 8th Grade Intervention
● Extension of Bridges Mathematics

Cons:
● Not compatible with Assistments
● No built in intervention

Envisions (K-8)
Pros:

● K-8
● Consumables and online platform
● Savvas Realize: Video tutorials
● Combination of everyday problems and student choice projects
● Built-in Interventions: differentiation and enrichment
● Intervention kits
● My Savvas Training 24/7

Cons:
● Not compatible with Assistments
● Intervention Kit is an additional cost

Bridges Mathematics (K-5)
Pros:

● Builds number sense (number corner)
● Online component-looks very engaging
● Nice combinations of direct instruction and hands-on investigation
● Fluency Component
● Aligns with AVMR-subitizing, bundles, beadracks, etc.

Cons:
● Layout/directions/text not appealing
● Too many supplies and bulletin boards to manage
● Extra 20 minutes needed in schedule for Number Corner (80 minutes

total)
● Online reviews say it requires A LOT of teacher time and material prep
● A lot of storage space needed for materials



● K-5

Mrs. Tamsin stated that they will meet again in two weeks to develop a plan on
which units they will be piloting to replace the work they have not done yet in
EngageNY. She stated that she will provide more information as they progress
through the process.

Dr. Perkins-Banas asked Mrs. Tamsin about the Envisions program where she
stated that there is an adaptable homework or modified homework, will it help
with students that have modifications on an IEP? Mrs. Tamsin stated that the
adaptable piece of the program is the computer adaptability where if a student
gets a question wrong, it will modify the direction it will take the student on the
assignment. It will individualize the instruction around the content being worked
on.

4. Correspondence and Communication

a. Thank you - Alumni Sportswear

Mrs. Buell stated she sent a thank you letter to Alumni Sportswear for their
generous donation of sixteen (16) personalized long sleeve shirts for the Brooklyn
Middle School Boys Basketball Team.

b. Thank you letter from Project P.I.N. (People in Need)

Mrs. Buell stated the students and staff at Brooklyn Middle School received a
thank you letter from Project P.I.N thanking them for their generous food donation
and for supporting Project P.I.N. Project P.I.N stated that their donation will help
ease the stress and worry that many families have about providing food for their
families. Also, their donation will help families in Plainfield and surrounding
communities.

c. Thank You Letter - Sara Sutherland

Mrs. Buell stated she sent a thank you letter to Sara Sutherland for her generous
donation of $480.00 to Brooklyn Elementary School. Her donation will be used
for the Brooklyn Elementary Activity Fund to assist students that need monetary
support for activities.

d. Thank You Letter - Beagary Charitable Trust

Mrs. Buell stated she sent a thank you letter to the Beagary Charitable Trust for
their continued support of the Brooklyn Public Schools. Their donation will go
towards the Student Enrichment Fund to benefit all Brooklyn Elementary and
Middle School students that need financial assistance towards field trips and other
other enrichment programs.



e. Resignation Board of Finance - Jeffrey Otto

Mrs. Buell stated that she received a letter of resignation from Jeffrey Otto as the
liaison for the Board of Education. Mrs. Buell stated Mr. Otto resigned from the
Board of Finance last week and she reached out to him and congratulated him and
wished him well.

f. Retirement - Linda Jung

Mrs. Buell stated that she received a letter of retirement from Linda Jung,
Reading teacher at Brooklyn Elementary School, at the end of this school year.
Mrs. Buell thanks her for many years and wishes her well.

g. Resignation - Lori Sullivan

Mrs. Buell stated that she received a letter of resignation from Lori Sullivan, Art
teacher at the Brooklyn Middle School. Mrs. Buell wishes her well.

5. Administrative Reports

a. Brooklyn Enrollment

Mrs. Buell discussed the December enrollment report. She stated that there were
no major changes in enrollment. The total enrollment is down by 3 students.

b. FY22 Financial Reports

Mrs. Buell shared the expenditure report. She stated that there are some negatives
that she and the Business Manager are monitoring. Mrs. Buell stated that the
insurance line is in the negative from changes in enrollment and salaries is in the
negative due to changes and long-term substitutes. She stated that she is expecting
to finish the year on budget. Mrs. Buell stated that she will continue to monitor
spending.

c. Transfer Request

Mrs. Buell discussed the budget transfer request that reflects some of the
expenditures in special education in the amount of $41,110.00. She would like the
Board to approve to move $41,110.00 from two special education line items to
two special education line items to offset the deficit.

Motion to approve the transfer of $41,110.00 as detailed in the transfer request.
(Burgess/Phaiah)
No Discussion
Vote Count: 4, 0



Unanimous vote to approve

d. December Data Dashboard

Mrs. Buell discussed the Data Dashboard for December with the Board. She
stated some of the screenings were not able to happen in December and stated that
the screenings were finishing up this week.

Brooklyn Elementary School Data for the month of December:
● Assessment completed on time: NA
● At or above expectations: NA
● % of students in intervention Tier II: NA
● % of students in intervention Tier III: 213; 40.73%
● Observations reviewed: 6
● Instructional pacing on track: 88.33%
● Learning objectives: 100.00%

Brooklyn Middle School Data for the month of December:
● Assessment completed on time: 100.00%
● At or above expectations: Math - 20%; ELA - 59%
● % of students in intervention Tier II: 128; 36.9%
● Student intervention Tier III: 62; 19.00%
● observations reviewed: 8
● Instructional pacing on track: 75.00%
● Learning objectives: 75.00%

District Attendance for the month of December:
● BES student attendance: 539 ; 86.52%
● BES staff attendance: 88; full day - 94.92%; partial day - 96.19%
● BMS student attendance: 347 - 88.75%
● BMS staff attendance: 64; full day - 94.30%; partial day - 96.69%

e. Brooklyn’s Best

BES
● Our early childhood staff is currently in the NAEYC assessor visit. They

have done a tremendous job preparing for this.
● Our office staff has begun the process of enrolling preschool children for

next year.
● Teachers are administering the winter universal screens and there has been

excitement over the growth happening in the classrooms.
● The pacing and timing of mini lessons have been very strong across all

grade levels.
● Mr. Osborn’s 1st grade class celebrates together every time someone

levels up on Lexia.



● We have had many new staff members pass their first module of TEAM.
This is due to their hard work and the support of their mentors.

BMS
● Good Cookie December 2022:

Grade 5: King/DS: Aliviah Menor
Carson/Nault: Aiden Black

Grade 6: Brody LaVallee, Makenna Faucher
Grade 7: Reagan Scheck, Josh Couture
Grade 8: Tieman Curran, Emily Mumford

● Received two (2) grants from Wamart:
○ $3,000 towards athletic uniforms
○ $1,000 towards our Community Fitness Course

● Athletics:
○ Girls Basketball: The Girls Basketball team are in the finals
○ Boys Basketball currently 4-2

● We had a very successful Food Drive for Project P.I.N.

Central Office
Mrs. Buell read the following statement she wrote:
“A very special and sincere thank you to Mr. Jeff Otto. I want to wish Jeff the best
in his retirement. I hope that he will enjoy many adventures with his wife as they
travel. I am very grateful to Jeff for his dedication to the Town of Brooklyn. I
have appreciated his questions and guidance as the Chairperson for the Board of
Finance and the liaison to the Board of Education. His questions and comments
have helped me to think about the district from a different perspective, one that I
am grateful for. I am aware that he also stepped down from the QV dispatch after
well over 40 years! He has been a staple in Brooklyn and his presence will be
missed on the Boards!”

6. Board of Education Committee Reports

None to Report

7. Board Representatives to Other Committees

None to Report

8. Old Business

a. Draft 4: 2022-2023 Calendar

Mrs. Buell reviewed the Draft 4 2022-2023 calendar with the Board of Education.
There was discussion of changing December 23, 2022 from a full day to an early
release day and decided to keep it a full day of school.



Motion to approve the Draft 4 calendar for the 2022-2023 school year.
(Perkins-Banas/Phaiah)
No Discussion
Vote Count: 4, 0
Unanimous vote to approve

b. RFP’s for Boiler Replacement

Mrs. Buell stated the Request for Proposals (RFP) have gone out for the multi fuel
fired condensing boiler/burner replacement and oil fired boiler/burner
replacement. She stated that they are hoping for multiple bids and the bids will
close on February 28, 2022.

Mrs. Lyons stated she knows they have discussed oil and propane. She asked what
a multi fuel fired boiler is? Mrs. Buell stated that a multi fuel fired condensing
boiler allows you to use propane and if natural gas comes to the area, it would be
an inexpensive switch to burn natural gas.

Mrs. Buell stated that she asked if the schools happen to get a multi fuel fired
boiler and the HVAC system gets upgraded, would they be able to run some of the
systems off of electricity where the electricity is generated by solar.

c. TiCoat Application begins on Friday, February 18, 2022

Mrs. Buell provided an update on the TiCoat application. The application will
begin on February 18, 2022 at 3:45p.m. Brooklyn will be the first school to have
this application. The product is safe to use in schools. All surfaces that can be
touched will be treated and will be easier to clean without chemicals.

Mrs. Buell would like to have the PD day on February 22, 2022 be held remotely
to allow time for the application process to be completed.

d. Town ARP Request - July 26, 2021

Mrs. Buell stated that she sent a letter to the town on behalf of the Board of
Education asking for their consideration to upgrade the HVAC systems in both
schools using ARP funds.

9. New Business

a. Math Pilot Presentation by BMS

Presented earlier under agenda 3b.

b. Discussion/interview for the BOE vacancy position



There are two community members, Rick Ives, and Samuel Bonfonte that are
interested in filling a Board of Education vacancy position. The Board asked each
candidate questions.

There were no other candidates that reached out stating interest. The vacancy had
been posted on the website and reached out to both republican and democratic
committees.

The Board is prepared to vote and a paper vote was taken, four votes were cast:

Melissa Perkins voted for Rick Ives
Justin Phaiah voted for Rick Ives
Kayla Burgess voted for Rick Ives
Mae Lyons voted for Rick Ives

Mrs. Lyons stated that Mr. Ives will need to be sworn in and the next Board of
Education meeting is February 23, 2022.

c. Board Policies - 1st Reading

i. 6172.1(a): Gifted and Talented Students Program

Mrs. Buell stated that the policy is for the Board to review and they will
discuss at the next meeting.

d. SwabTek Narcotics Test Kits (NTK)

Mrs. Buell stated that the schools received test kits from SERAC who supports
our Local Prevention Council. They support the work we are doing to increase
awareness around the risks of vaping and drugs/alcohol.

Mrs. Lyons asked if the test kit is to determine if a student brings something in?
Mrs. Buell stated if a student brings something in, they can test the item to
determine if the substance is a narcotic. The narcotic could be on a surface, in
food or in liquids and would be detected when tested. Mrs. Buell stated that the
Board approved a Narcan Policy last year and have it on hand in case it becomes
necessary in school.

10. Public Comment

None

11. Adjournment

Motion to adjourn at 8:17 p.m.



(Perkins-Banas/Phaiah)
No Discussion
Vote Count: 4, 0
Unanimous vote to approve

Respectfully Submitted,

Donn� L . DiBenede��

Donna L. DiBenedetto
Board Clerk

____________________________________ _______________
Justin Phaiah, Board of Education Secretary Date





















 
State of Connecticut 

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 
STATE CAPITOL 

HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT 06106-1591 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

REPRESENTATIVE PATRICK S. BOYD 
50TH ASSEMBLY DISTRICT 

 
LEGISLATIVE OFFICE BUILDING, ROOM 4005 

CAPITOL: (860) 240-8585 
TOLL FREE: (800) 842-8267 

FAX: (860) 240-0206 
E-MAIL: Pat.Boyd@cga.ct.gov 

CHAIRMAN:  
JOINT COMMITTEE ON VETERANS’ AFFAIRS 

 
MEMBER 

PUBLIC SAFETY AND SECURITY COMMITTEE 
COMMITTEE ON CHILDREN 

 
 
February 20, 2022  
 
Board of Education 
Town of Brooklyn  
4 Wolf Den Road 
Brooklyn CT 06234 
 
 
Dear Honorable Members of the Board of Education, 
 
As you know the Connecticut General Assembly convened this past week for the 2022 Legislative Session. This is 
what is known as the “short” Session and runs for approximately 12 weeks concluding in May. While proposed 
legislation is centered around budget adjustments to the second year of the biennium State budget, often other issues 
are considered.  
 
Throughout the Session I am available to answer any questions that you may have. As information becomes 
available to me, I will forward it to the First Selectman & the Superintendent of Schools for dissemination to 
appropriate boards.  
 
Please feel free to reach out to me at pat.boyd@cga.ct.gov or on my personal cell phone at 860-208-5531 at any 
point during the Session.  
 
Thank you for the often-difficult work that you do on behalf of the residents of the Town of Brooklyn. I appreciate 
your dedication to Public Service.  
 
 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 

 
  
Pat Boyd 
 

 



Brooklyn Public Schools Enrollment 2021-2022 2/16/2022
BES Grade Level, Sections Pre-K   K First Second Third Fourth Total
PK AM Class 1 15 16 19 17 18 16 101
PK PM Class 1 17 15 18 18 18 20 106
PK AM Class 2 16 13 19 19 18 18 103
PK PM Class 2 17 16 19 18 19 18 107
PK AM Class 3 14 16 20 18 20 17 105
PK PM Class 3 17

Total in person 96 76 95 90 93 89 539
Homeschooled 0 4 4 3 3 6 20

3
BMS Grade Level, 

Sections Fifth   Sixth Seventh Eighth Total
19 18 21 19 77
20 19 18 21 78
19 20 21 20 80
18 20 19 16 73

20 19 39

Total in person 76 97 79 95 - - 347
Homeschooled 0 2 2 1 5

High School Students Ninth Tenth Eleventh Twelfth Total
Woodstock Academy 42 51 57 39.5 189.5
Killingly High School 13 27 35 26 101
Killingly Ag Science 1 3 0 2 6
Plainfield High School 0 1 0 1 2
Parish Hill High School 0 0 0 1 1
Putnam High School 0 1 0 0 1
Griswold High School 0 0 0 1 1
Norwich Free Academy 2 2 6 1 11
Ellis Technical High School 15 13 18 15 61
Quinebaug Middle College 0 1 1 3 5
Act 0 0 0 0 0
**LEARN Magnet School 0 0 0 0 0
Total by Grade 73 99 117 89.5 378.5

OUT OF DISTRICT STUDENTS (not counted in totals above) 16

TOTAL BROOKLYN STUDENT ENROLLMENT PK-21 1280.5
Total Enrollment Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
2017-18 1314 1314 1311 1304 1310 1312 1311 1318 1319 1320
2018-19 1332 1336 1327 1326 1325 1325 1320 1333 1338 1339
2019-20 1342 1343 1344 1345 1348 1342 COVID last day 3/13/2020
2020-2021 (COVID, In/Opt 
Out) 1260 1242 1243 1246 1245 1227 1230 1244 1251 1251
Homeschooled 20-21 25 35 47 25 50 61 61 53 53 53
21-22 19 22

September October November December January February March April May June
2021-22 1258.5 1270.5 1275.5 1282.5 1281.5 1280.5

Sept June
2017-18 1314 1320
2018-19 1332 1339
2019-20 1342 1342
2020-2021* 1260 1251
2021-22 1274















Brooklyn Elementary School District Advancement Plan Monitoring: 1/1/2022-1/31/2022

Assessment:                              
% completed on time

Student Intervention:                              
% of students in intervention

Observations: Short classroom observations will 
occur montly specifically to track pacing of 

instruction. 

Learning Objectives: Observations included data 
on clearly stated learning objectives.                        

                        

100%
Tier II Tier III 6 Observations Reviewed

100.00%
62 80% At or above expectation Instructional Pacing On Track

NA 11.48% 14.81% 88.33%

Brooklyn Middle School

Assessment:                              
% completed on time

Student Intervention:                              
% of students in intervention

Observations: Short classroom observations will 
occur montly specifically to track pacing of 

instruction. 

Learning Objectives: Observations included data 
on clearly stated learning objectives.                        

                        

100.00%
Tier II Tier III 6 Observations Reviewed

80.00%

125 49% At or above expectation Instructional Pacing On Track
Math ELA

36% 14.12% 83.30%29% 55%
District Attendance:  Student Attendance.     Staff Attendance    19 Student Days and 19 Staff Days 

541 BES Student Attendance 88 BES Staff Attendance  349 BMS Student Attendance 64 BMS Staff Attenance

86.22%
Full Day Partial Day

88.50%
Full Day Partial Day

89.47% 94.26% 93.67% 95.97%

Data Team Meeting Dates Meeting Minutes. BES.   BMS Data Trends
BES BMS District

September September
October October
November November
December December
January January
February February
March March
April April
May May
June June



BROOKLYN  PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Brooklyn, Connecticut 06234

Brooklyn’s Best

BES

● This week we are holding our SRBI data team meetings.  Teachers are grouping children based on
individual needs and working together to ensure that all students are being provided support to ensure
success.  This is due to all of the behind the scenes work of the SRBI Committee.

● Our Kindergarten students received their superhero capes as a celebration of being Super Readers.
They completed their reading unit in which they gained various  reading powers such as pointer powers
to help them read.  We all joined in the fun by cheering on our newest readers during their Super
Reader parade around the school.

● Some of our 4th grade students became mentors to their third grade peers in writing.  These students
came to Ms. Duquette's classroom to confer during writing time.

● BMS and BES office staff have been participating in weekly Zoom meetings to ensure a smooth
transition into next year's management system.

BMS

Good Cookie

5th King/DS:  Lexie Young Carson/Nault:  Isabella Noel

6th Brynn Choruzek

7th Cora Hefner Edward Purcell

8th Kiley Elliott Camden Mercer

● Successful Reading Challenge:
○ 6th Grade won with over 250 books read
○ as a school over 800 books were read
○ Whole School Read Underway- The Insignificant Events in the Life of  Cactus

● Winter Benchmark Data celebration:
○ In all grade levels, there was at least a 7% increase in the projected proficiency on the

SBAC in math with the highest jump in 7th with a 12% growth. Additionally, the student
growth percentile was strong in all grade levels, again with 7th grade having 81% of
students growing at the expected rate based on our bar of 35 SGP.



BROOKLYN  PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Brooklyn, Connecticut 06234



P6172.1(a) 
 

Optional policy. 

 

Instruction 

 

Gifted and Talented Students Program  

 

Gifted students are those with outstanding learning abilities or outstanding talent in the creative 

arts. 

 

The school district shall provide educational programs for the gifted and talented, within 

budgetary constraints that include a broad spectrum of learning experiences which increase 

knowledge and develop skills necessary for the student to function successfully in society while 

encouraging students to excel in areas of special competence and interest. 

 

Though early identification of the gifted and talented is important, it is essential that the 

identification of these students be recognized as a continuing process in that special abilities and 

skills appear at different times in the lives of many children and new children are regularly being 

enrolled in the system. 

 

Upon the identification of a student as gifted and talented, the District shall provide electronic 

notice of such identification to the parent/guardian of such student. Such notice shall include, but 

need not be limited to: 

 

1. an explanation of how such student was identified as gifted and talented,  

2. the contact information for the District’s employee in charge of the provision of services 

to gifted and talented students, or, if there is no such employee, the District’s employee in 

charge of the provision of special education and related services, 

3. the employee at the State Department of Education who has been designated as 

responsible for providing information and assistance to boards of education and parents 

or guardians of students related to gifted and talented students, pursuant to section 10-3e 

of the General Statutes, and  

4. any associations in the state that provide support to gifted and talented students. 

 

The school district shall utilize the guidelines, developed and promulgated by the State 

Department of Education (SDE), for providing services to those students. The guidelines include 

best practices for the district to consider for (1) addressing the intellectual, social and emotional 

needs of gifted and talented students in schools and (2) providing teacher training and 

professional development on gifted and talented students. 

 

Another version: 

 

The ____________ Public Schools are committed to recognizing and promoting the individual 

strengths, gifts, and talents of all children. 

 

The ____________ Public Schools, in conjunction with State of Connecticut regulations and 

requirements, will identify students demonstrating extraordinary ability academically, creatively 

and artistically. 



P6172.1(b) 
 

 

 

Instruction 

 

Gifted and Talented Students Program  

 

Another version (continued): 

 

The identification process is based on a multi-criteria assessment process, typically including 

both subjective and objective data. It is recognized that identified students may be 

accommodated in a variety of ways, such as, but not limited to, the provision for supplementary 

materials, extensions to the curriculum and accelerated placement options. 

 

Upon the identification of a student as gifted and talented, the District shall provide electronic 

notice of such identification to the parent/guardian of such student. Such notice shall include, but 

need not be limited to: 

 

1. an explanation of how such student was identified as gifted and talented,  

2. the contact information for the District’s employee in charge of the provision of services 

to gifted and talented students, or, if there is no such employee, the District’s employee in 

charge of the provision of special education and related services, 

3. the employee at the State Department of Education who has been designated as 

responsible for providing information and assistance to Boards of Education and parents 

or guardians of students related to gifted and talented students, pursuant to section 10-3e 

of the General Statutes, and 

4. any associations in the state that provide support to gifted and talented students. 

 

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes 

 

10-76a-(e) Definitions. 

 

10-76d-(e) Duties and powers of Boards of Education to provide special 

education programs and services. 

 

P.A. 19-184 An Act Concerning the Provision of Special Education. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Policy adopted: 
rev 6/17 

rev 7/19 

Sample policies are distributed for demonstration purposes only.  Unless so noted, contents do not necessarily reflect official policies of the 

Connecticut Association of Boards of Education, Inc. 


